
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET DELEGATED DECISIONS

COUNCILLOR MARK DEAVILLE
DEPUTY LEADER & PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR LEISURE AND SPORTS

Friday, 26 February 2021 

1 ALLOCATION OF S.106 FUNDS IN WERRINGTON RELATING TO 
PLANNING APPLICATION SMD/2014/0764

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet Delegated Decisions

26 February 2021

TITLE: Allocation of S.106 funds in Werrington 
relating to Planning Application 
SMD/2014/0764

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Cllr Mark Deaville - Deputy Leader 
& Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Sports

CONTACT OFFICER: Gareth Knapper – Service Development 
Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: Werrington;

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To seek approval to allocate section 106 funding towards new play and 
recreation facilities at Meigh Road Playing Fields in Werrington.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Leisure and Sports approves the allocation of 
section 106 funding towards the play and recreation improvements at Meigh 
Road Playing Fields in Werrington as detailed in this report.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 In 2015 planning permission (application SMD/2014/0764) was granted by 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council (SMDC) for a development of 31 
houses in Werrington. As part of the permission a section 106 agreement which 
included an amount of £81,324 (£79,024 currently unspent) was agreed to be 
used towards play, recreation and open space facilities. 

3.2 Following a review of our strategic evidence base, local discussions with 
members of Werrington Parish Council and a public consultation exercise 
regarding the potential use of the funds, an opportunity to allocate some of the 
funds towards a local project has been identified. 

3.3 Meigh Road playing field is a significant piece of green space located in the 
centre of the village. The area consists of open space, a small wood, play area 
with equipment for younger children, a Multi-Use Games Area (MUGA), and a 
grass football pitch. The site is owned and maintained by the Parish Council. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



3.4 Werrington Parish Council carried out a survey in the village during 2019 to 
identify what facilities for young people should be developed in the future. The 
survey received more than 360 responses. The community were able to put a 
number of options in order of preference. The results identified that 77% of 
respondents wanted to see a BMX track developed whilst 72% wanted ramps 
for scooters to use.

3.5 After looking into the benefits of both a BMX track and ramps for the scooters it 
was realised that a pump track (tarmacadam surface) would be useable by both 
BMX (and other types of bikes) and scooter riders. 

3.6 The cost to deliver the pump track is estimated to be £55,000.

3.7 British Cycling is currently managing a grant funding scheme called Places to 
Ride and SMDC officers have been working in partnership with Werrington 
Parish Council to develop an application for £20,000 which, if successful, would 
be used as match funding towards the pump track. It is important to note that in 
order for British Cycling to consider applications progressing to stage 2, 
evidence of match funding is required.

3.8 If the application to the Places to Ride fund is successful, a shortfall of £35,000 
will be required to complete the pump track project and it is proposed this 
shortfall is met from the s106 funds outlined in section 3.1. If the application is 
unsuccessful, it is proposed that the full amount of £55,000 required to deliver 
the pump track project is met from the s106 funds.

3.9 The remaining amount of approximately £44,000 or £24,000 would remain and 
be available to support other projects in the village which sit within the scope 
of the section 106 allocation.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 This report links to Aim 1: To help create a safer and healthier environment for 
our communities to live and work. Whereby we will be meeting key objectives 
(a) developing a positive relationship with our community and (b) our strategic 
partners; whist (c) improving the provision of sports facilities and leisure 
opportunities focused on improving health.

4.2 This report additionally links to Aim 4: To protect and improve the environment 
and respond to the climate change emergency. Where we are meeting the key 
objective of provision of quality parks and open spaces.  

 
5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are in effect two options available to us, option 1 has been presented as 
1a and b as it is dependent on the application of funding being successful. The 
options therefore are:

Option 1a - To allocate £35,000 from the s106 allocation to enable a BMX pump 
track to be installed at Meigh Road Playing Fields, Werrington. This allocation 
will form part of the match funding along with external funding from British 

Page 4



Cycling: Places to Ride fund (£20,000) if successful. The total required for the 
project is £55,000 and we currently are awaiting the outcome from the 
submission to British Cycling. (RECOMMENDED)

Option 1b - To allocate the full amount required (£55,000) from the s106 
allocation to Werrington Parish Council to enable a BMX pump track to be 
installed at Meigh Road Playing Fields, Werrington, if the funding bid to British 
Cycling is unsuccessful. (RECOMMENDED)

Option 2 - 
To not allocate any funds from the s106 allocation to Werrington Parish Council 
for the BMX pump track at Meigh Road Playing Fields, Werrington. (NOT 
RECOMMENDED)

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

Improvements to the open spaces and recreational facilities will 
increase the use of the site, helping to create a safe environment. 
The involvement and support of the local community will 
demonstrate that the open space is protected and cared for which 
will hopefully deter nuisance and anti-social behaviour.  

6.2 Workforce

There will be no impact on SMDC workforce.

Werrington Parish Council will be responsible for managing the 
installation and retain the responsibility for the ongoing maintenance 
of the site within their ownership, through their own regimes. 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

The facilities will be available to the whole community to use.

6.4 Financial Considerations

The cost of the BMX pump track is estimated to £55,000 plus VAT. 

If successful with the Places to Ride funding bid, £35,000 from the 
s106 allocation is being sought. If the bid is unsuccessful the full cost 
of the track is being sought from the s106 allocation.

The full amounts being sought are either £35,000 or £55,000, 
depending on the outcome of the funding bid to British Cycling 
Funding, this is from the existing reserved section 106 allocation of 
£79,024 and so the project will have no impact on existing revenue 
or capital budgets.

Page 5



6.5 Legal

There are no legal implications at this stage.

6.6 Climate Change

Undertaking the works will improve the future use of the site and 
maximise the impact of the recreation ground for the local 
community.

6.7 Consultation

A public survey was conducted by Werrington Parish Council in 
2019. As detailed in section 7.4

6.8 Risk Assessment

All project management will be the responsibility of Werrington 
Parish Council although as part of the on-going partnership our 
officers will be available for advice.

All safety documentation will be required from the contractors prior 
to any works on site.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Gareth Knapper
Service Development Officer
gareth.knapper@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

7. Detail

7.1 In 2015 planning permission (application SMD/2014/0764) was granted by 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council (SMDC) for a development of 31 
houses in Werrington. As part of the permission a section 106 agreement which 
included an amount of £81,324 was agreed to be used towards play, recreation 
and open space facilities. There is £79,024 remaining in the accounts.

7.2 It should be noted that the section 106 agreement stipulates that the allocation 
of funds is allocated within seven years of the sum being received by the 
Council. This means the allocation of funds is required to be completed by 
November 2023. 

6.4

Page 6



7.2 Following a review of our strategic evidence base, local discussions with 
members of Werrington Parish Council and a public consultation exercise 
regarding the potential use of the funds, an opportunity to allocate some of the 
funds towards a local project has been identified. 

7.3 Meigh Road playing field is a significant piece of green space located in the 
centre of the village. The area consists of open space, a small wood, play area 
with equipment for younger children, a Multi-Use Games Area (MUGA), and a 
grass football pitch. The site which also has a car park and is owned and 
maintained by the Parish Council. There is also a bowling green attached to the 
playing fields which is leased to a local bowls club and a gravel circular pathway 
which was installed a number of years ago to encourage the community to be 
more active.

7.4 Werrington Parish Council carried out a survey in the village in 2019. Every 
household in the village (2,400) were alerted to the survey and posted a paper 
form but it was also available to complete via Survey Monkey online. More than 
360 surveys were completed and returned. Residents were able to rank, in order 
of preference the facilities which they would like to see in the village. The final 
analysis showing that 77% of respondents wanted to see a BMX track and 72% 
scooter ramps. The Parish Council has concluded that a pump track would be 
the best option as both BMX and scooters could use the same facility.  

7.5 Werrington has additionally suffered with a high level of anti-social behaviour 
(ASB) over the last few years. It is perceived that the majority of the ASB has 
been caused by the thirteen to sixteen age group who comment that they have 
nothing in the village to keep them occupied. The Parish Council has worked 
alongside the Police to try and help resolve some of these issues and it is felt 
that a facility such as a pump track would help to channel the energy of these 
teenagers into a more productive use.

7.6 The SMDC physical activity and sport strategy ‘Towards an Active Staffordshire 
Moorlands’, outlines the Council’s aspirations to improve physical activity levels. 
The addition of a pump track at Meigh Road playing fields would help achieve 
these aims, especially in children and young people aged 5 to 18 years, which 
are identified in the strategy as a priority target group. 

7.7 Cellarhead is also listed as a target area within the strategy and is seen by many 
residents to be part of the wider Werrington village, with schools, and local 
amenities are located in Werrington.

7.8 The Parish Council has received quotes to construct the pump track from two 
reputable national contractors who have both visited the site over the last 12 
months. From the quotes received it is estimated that the project will cost in the 
region of £55,000 to complete.

7.9 British Cycling is currently managing a grant funding scheme called Places to 
Ride and SMDC officers have been working in partnership with Werrington 
Parish Council to develop an application for £20,000 in support of the pump 
track project. It has recently been confirmed that the application for £20,000 has 
been invited to progress to the second stage of the assessment process.

Page 7



7.10 If the application to the Places to Ride fund is successful, a shortfall of £35,000 
will be required to complete the pump track project and it is proposed this 
shortfall is met from the s106 funds outlined in section 3.1. If the application is 
unsuccessful, it is proposed that the full amount of £55,000 required to deliver 
the pump track project is met from the s106 funds

7.11 By approving the recommendations detailed in this report, a total of £35,000 or 
£55,000 would be allocated to deliver the pump track project, which would then 
leave a remaining amount either £44,024 or £24,024 to support other projects 
in the village which sit within the scope of the section 106 allocation. 

Page 8


	Agenda
	1 Allocation of S.106 funds in Werrington relating to Planning Application SMD/2014/0764

